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Amendment of Solicitation 

 

Date of Issuance: 6/23/17 Solicitation No. 3400001525 

Requisition No.       Amendment No. 2 

Hour and date specified for receipt of offers is changed:  No   Yes, to: July 12, 2017 3:00 PM    CST 
 
Pursuant to OAC 260:115-7-30(d), this document shall serve as official notice of amendment to the solicitation identified 
above. Such notice is being provided to all suppliers to which the original solicitation was sent.  
Suppliers submitting bids or quotations shall acknowledge receipt of this solicitation amendment prior to the hour and 
date specified in the solicitation as follows: 

(1)  Sign and return a copy of this amendment with the solicitation response being submitted; or, 
(2)  If the supplier has already submitted a response, this acknowledgement must be signed and returned prior to 

the solicitation deadline. All amendment acknowledgements submitted separately shall have the solicitation 
number and bid opening date printed clearly on the front of the envelope. 

ISSUED BY and RETURN TO: 
U.S. Postal Delivery: 
Oklahoma State Department of Health 
1000 NE 10th St. 
Procurement Service, Room 309 
Oklahoma City, OK 73117 - 1299 
or 
Personal or Common Carrier Delivery: 
Oklahoma State Department of Health 
1000 NE 10th St. 
Procurement Service, Room 309 
Oklahoma City, OK 73117 - 1299 
 

Ashley Hillemeyer  
Contracting Officer  

405    - 271 - 4043  
Phone  Number  

ashleyl@health.ok.gov  

E-Mail  Address  

Description of Amendment: 

a. This is to incorporate the following: 

Questions received regarding the RFP and answers: 
1. Are the forms fillable online? 

Answer: Attachment A and Attachment T are fillable online.  All others are not. 
 

2. On B.16 on page 14, it is asking us to complete the FFATA form, but I do not see this form in this RFP. 

Answer: The referenced form is page 2 of Attachment A (Sub-Recipient Contractor’s Questionnaire). 
3. H.9, Contractual, This clause refers to an Attachment U. There is no attachment U. May we have a copy of the 

Professional Service Evaluation document? 

Answer: Attachment U is posted with this amendment. 
 

4. Can responses be emailed or provided in hard copy? 

Answer: Responses should be received by the OSDH in hard copy form. Responses can be mailed or delivered to the 
OSDH Central Office, 1000 NE 10th St., Oklahoma City, OK, Room 309. ATTN: Ashley Hillemeyer. 
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5. We are assuming this is a typo, but throughout the RFP, you are indicating the contract time-frame SFY 2018 
through SFY 2023. Just for clarification, can we assume this RFP is for services provided through the next five 
years, from SFY 2018 through SFY 2023? 

Answer: The contract period and agreement period are defined in RFP section C.4. The initial contract period will be 
date of award through June 30, 2018 (SFY18). The contract allows 4 one-year renewal options (SFY19, SFY20, SFY21, 
SFY22). This is a typo. All references in the RFP to SFY23 are replaced with SFY22. 
 

6. How many hard copies are to be submitted? 

Answer: Four (4) hard copies are to be provided. 
 

7. Electronic copy to be submitted to what email address? 

Answer: Electronic/email submittals are not required. 
 

8. Should the electronic copy be submitted on the same date as hard copy? 

Answer: Electronic/email submittals are not required. 
 

9. Now that a 2 month contract extension has been granted for the programs that had OCAP funds for the last 
contract cycle from 2012 to 2017, are we supposed to turn in a 12 month budget or a 10 month budget? 

Answer: Contract extensions for current contractors are an independent and unrelated action to this RFP to assure 
continuity of client services without lapse as this RFP process is completed. Submit a 12-month budget as required by 
the RFP. 
 

10. If it is a 10 month budget, how are you going to calculate the amount for the option to renew for up to four (4) 
additional one (1) year periods? Are you just going to add the amount to our 2-month budget? Keep in mind that 
the 2-month budget was based on our current budget and that the amount might be different for this new RFP. 

Answer: The process for calculating funding for awards is described in RFP section C.5. 
 

11. I did not see a copy of the OSDH Memorandum of legal Opinion mentioned on B.31 on the top of page 18. Can 
we have one? 

Answer: The reference  to OSDH Memorandum in that section is incorrect. It is replaced with OSDH Memorandum of 
Legal Opinion 12-029, dated June 29, 2012. A copy of the correct opinion is attached to this amendment. 
 

12. Should we calculate the budget based on the average cost per family? (For SY2017 it was $3,750, correct?).  

Answer: See RFP Section C.5. The amount per family is provided as a guide. 
 
13. I just want to clarify that the minimum contract to be considered is $160,000 and the maximum amount per 

contract is $450,000? Of course depending on the availability of funds.  

Answer: That is correct. 
 
14. Is there a minimum or maximum amount that can be used for In-kind donations?  

Answer: See RFP Section C.6. The statute requires at a minimum a 10% in-kind or cash donation.  “The Office shall 
develop and publish requests for proposals for grants or contracts for child abuse prevention programs and services 
which shall require no less than a ten percent (10%) cash or in-kind match by an agency or organization receiving a 
grant or contract and which are designed to meet identified priority needs.” 
 
 
 
15. What is the page limit for responses? Do the OMES forms (and any other required forms) count against any 

page limit? Are there guidelines regarding required font size and/or line spacing? 

Answer: There is no defined page limit or requirements regarding font size and/or line spacing.  
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16. A.2.4 states “… In addition to a hard copy submittal, the bidder will also be required to submit an electronic 

copy. Electronic responses must be submitted in the identical format contained in the solicitation (for example 
Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, but not Adobe PDF).”  However, the solicitation itself is in Adobe PDF format. 
Please elaborate and/or clarify. 

Answer: Electronic responses are not required. 
 
17. What media should be used for the electronic copy? CD/DVD, flash drive, etc.?  How should the electronic copy 

be labeled? 

Answer: Electronic responses are not required. 
 
18. How many hard copies are we required to submit? 

Answer: See question # 6. 
 
19. The RFP talks about submitting a copy electronically, are we to also submit electronically and if so are we to 

email or use a flash drive or something else? 

Answer: Electronic responses are not required. 
 
20. Is the budget to be written for 12 months?  

Answer: See question # 9. 
 
21. When talking about equipment in the RFP it has a threshold of $500 in one place and $5000 in another, can you 

please clarify this? 

Answer: The reference to $500.00 is part of the definition of OSDH Equipment, which may be loaned to the 
Contractor. The reference to $5,000.00 is part of the general definition of equipment for cost-reimbursement 
purposes. 
 
22. In the narrative do you want us to use the headings and numbers, such as, E.2.1 etc. or just the Heading, 

Requested Funding Level and Proposed Level of Services? 

Answer: Use of the headings with the section number is preferred. Please provide a response to each question in 
the RFP as it is posed by section number. 
 
23. Where will we be able to find the answers to the questions that are submitted and will this be an attachment to 

the RFP? 

Answer: Questions and answers are posted as an amendment to the RFP. 
 
24. Under C.8.3.5, It says, “The contractor shall use the designated OSDH in capturing all required data and 

maintaining a paperless documentation system.” In the highlighted area is there a word or two missing? 
Answer: Maybe between “OSDH” and “in”? If so, what are those words? 

Answer:  The missing word is “program database”: The contractor shall use the designated OSDH program 
database in capturing all required data and maintaining a paperless documentation system.” 
 
 
25. E.2.2.1. This clause states that “requested funding per year (must be the same amount each year). In regards 

to the two-month extension of the FY17 contract for current contractors, will the amount we ask for in the two-
month extension be deducted from the award we receive from the FY18 RFP award if we receive an award?  

Answer: Yes. 
 
26. Basically the questions is, should we ask for 12 months of funding and the 2 months of extended funding will 

automatically be deducted or should we ask for 10 months of funding in SFY18 and 12 months for the four 
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extension years?  

Answer: See question #9 & question #10. Section H of the RFP only asks bidders to submit a budget for SFY18. 
 
27. H2, Proposed Budget, under the statement, “The following additional information is being provided for 

preparation of the proposed budget:” the items under this statement are numbered A.1.1, A.1.2 and A.1.3. Do 
these items reference back to Section A.1 Definitions of Section A, General Provisions or are the simply 
misnumbered? Please clarify if they information provided for guidance and should be numbered H.2.1, H.2.2 
and H.2.3. 

Answer: That is correct. 
 
28. Is the RFP for FY 2018 suppose to be based on a 12 month or 10 month budget based on the 2 month 

extension we are submitting for the FY 2017 contract? 

Answer: See question #9. 
 
29. Bid Submission A.2, Part A.2.4. We are unclear as to how to format the submission Electronic Form (CD, 

Thumb Drive?). Also, it states that in the electronic format “Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, but not Adobe 
PDF.” Can you be specific because OMES forms are only available to us in PDF format. Is that referring to the 
Narrative? Will we need to submit one hard copy and one electronic? 

Answer: See question#7. 
 
30. On page 20, you mentioned that the funding amount of contracts to be awarded under this RFP is contingent 

upon appropriation of funds by the state legislature for SY 2018. Do you already know that amount now? 

Answer: Not at this time. 
 
31. When using incentive items as an exchange of the participants completing the Group Connection Feedback 

Survey, can we use the retail value of the incentive? For example, a new book that costs $15?  

Answer: The organization would seek reimbursement of the cost of the incentive items. In the example provided, if 
the organization paid $15 for the book, the organization would seek reimbursement for $15. If the organization only 
expended $10, then the organization would only seek reimbursement of $10. 
 
32. If our program wants to place special focus on activities that addresses the OSDH “flagships issues” mentioned 

on page 22 (C.8.3.11) of reducing Oklahoma’s rate of obesity, tobacco use and increasing indicators associated 
with children’s health and behavioral health, can incentives be used as match? For example, if we work with a 
local organization to obtain free gym memberships for families to increase physical activity and promoting family 
wellness, can we use the membership fees or the maximum amount for incentives as match? 

Answer: Any shared costs or matching funds and all contributions, including cash and third-part in-kind 
contributions, must be accepted as match when such contributions meet all of the following criteria: 
1) Are verifiable from the organization’s records. 

2) Are not included as contributions for any other State or Federal award. 

3) Are necessary and reasonable for accomplishment of project or program objectives. 

4) Are allowable under 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart E – Cost Principles 

5) Are not otherwise paid for by the State or Federal government under another award, except where specifically 
authorized by Federal statute 

6) Are provided for in the approved budget 

7) Conform to other provisions of the contract and 2 CFR Part 200. 

If the gym memberships meet all of the above criteria and are approved by the OSDH program area, the allowable 
match cost would be the amount in which a normal person would pay. 
 
33. E.2.8 on page 28 differs from E.2.8.6 on the same page in that the former mentions including administrative 
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support staff, while the latter does not do so. According to the PAT Affiliate Plan the administrative support staff 
is required for the PAT model. Should we include the administrative support staff in the personnel category?  

Answer: If salary is being paid, it should be budgeted in the personnel category. 
 
 
 
34. Our Agency does not have an Indirect Cost Rate, but we use an allocation plan. The Program 

Manager/Administrator cannot be included in the allocation plan because her salary will be distributed to all 23 
programs. It would not be fair to charge the other 20 programs that she does not work with.  In the past, her 
time has been added in the personnel category according to her actual time spent in the OCAP program.  Can 
we continue including her salary in the personnel category? If this is not acceptable, can our agency create an 
allocation plan solely for the prevention programs that she works for? 

Answer: Salary should be included in the personnel category. The organization could prepare an allocation solely 
for this position in order to properly allocate costs to each program benefitted. 
 
35. In past RFPs, you have included an attachment with the PAT minimum service numbers required according to 

the proposed amount of funding and the number of PEs. That table gave us an idea of the minimum number of 
families to be served and the minimum number of home visits to be completed per month. Can you provide us 
with a table for guidance?  

Answer: See RFP Section C.5: “All proposals must acknowledge that a parent educator will carry a minimum 
caseload of 20 – 25 clients and complete 40 – 50 home visits per month, depending on the experience of the parent 
educator and her/his years of service.”    
 
36. The financial guidelines state on page 8 that “supplies which may be purchased through local match fund 

sources only are” and lists Welcome baby gifts such as toys, etc .  Our agency has hand-sewn baby quilts 
donated to us on an ongoing basis and has diapers donated to us through a non-profit organization.  We give 
these items to all new families as Welcome baby gifts.  Are these allowed to be considered match funds as 
stated in the guidelines? 

Answer: If these items are considered allowable costs to the program if purchased, the value (if purchased) of the 
donated items could be used to satisfy the required match. Documentation of the determination of the value will 
need to be maintained by the organization to support the matching cost. 
 
37. Under C.8.3.4, For those with existing OCAP contracts who converted from HFA to PAT last year, is it correct 

for budgeting purposes that we have already paid the first year affiliation fee of $3,850 and now we only have to 
budget annually for the second year and beyond annual affiliation fee of $1,650? 

Answer: PAT sets the affiliation fees. At this time, the fee for the first year an organization becomes a PAT affiliate 
is $3,850.00. Organizations who became affiliates last year or previously would pay the annual affiliation fee, 
currently $1,650.00. PAT fees are due each year on the anniversary date of the first year payment to maintain 
affiliate status 
. 
38. Under C.8.3.5, It says, “The contractor shall use the designated OSDH in capturing all required data and 

maintaining a paperless documentation system.” This statement is in conflict with PAT requirements when it 
comes to filing “personal visit plans”. PAT requires that the personal visit plans be filed in a paper form. Which 
policy supersedes the other? 

Answer: When referring to “required data” this is inclusive of the evaluation forms that are developed by OSDH. The 
Planning Guides do not contain any data, they are simply documents that assist the Parent Educator when planning 
for a visit. These forms are fillable, and can be found on the PAT website in a PDF version. To address the 
apparent discrepancy, C.8.3.5 is replaced with: 
 

       C.8.3.5:  The contractor shall use the designated OSDH Database to capture all information that is used for      
evaluation purposes and documentation of the home visit.  Other forms that are in a paper format and required shall be 
kept in the client’s file of record in a locked area.  
 

39. C.8.3.13. If a current contractor is awarded a grant from this RFP can we just resubmit the background checks 
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we conducted on Parent Educators/staff when we hired them or do we need to get new background checks? 

Answer: The requirement for background checks applies only to staff who have not previously been approved to work 
with PAT families. 
 
 
 
 

40. H2. Proposed Budget, There is reference to a sample budget being provided in Attachment T to assist in 
preparation of the Contract Budget Form. There is not a sample budget included in Attachment T, only the blank 
form. May we have a sample budget as indicated? 

Answer: The statement “A sample budget (Attachment T) is provided to assist in preparation of the form.” is deleted. 
 

41. In the scenario where if a responder to the RFP is a current contractor and proposing to increase the number of 
families they serve/number of home visits by increasing the number of Parent Educators they employ (which 
would then increase the amount of the proposal), will the contract be prorated to the 10-month period or will be 
expected to meet those proposed numbers in a 12-month period for number of families served and number of 
visits made. 

Answer: Should a current Contractor request more funding than they currently have and wish to expand the size of 
staff working within the PAT Program, the number of families to serve should be increased to be in line with the 
number of employed staff. Performance expectations for the contract will be based upon the actual period of the 
contract. 
 
42. In C.5. when it is stated that, “the historical average cost per family in SFY17 for this program was $3,750,” will 

you please provide a breakdown of what that number includes? Such as, does it include overhead, match, 
direct services, etc.? 

Answer: It includes all costs, excluding match. Please note that bidders are not required to provide a budget that would 
equate with a cost per family per year of $3,750.00. The amount is provided as a guideline. 

 
 

b. All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 

             
Supplier Company Name (PRINT)  Date 

               
Authorized Representative Name (PRINT)  Title  Authorized Representative Signature 
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Supplier Performance 
Evaluation 

Complete this form in evaluating the level of performance of an awarded supplier when doing business with the 
State of Oklahoma.  Please verify all information to ensure accuracy, as all necessary details must be furnished 
to ensure proper monitoring of supplier performance to achieve an informed and equitable evaluation of 
services provided.  Performance evaluations become a permanent record of the supplier and to serve as a 
reference for a contractor’s performance.                                               
References related to performance evaluations are:   Title 74 O.S. § 85.7.(C); 74 O.S. § 85.39.(C),                         
74 O.S. § 85.41.(B), and OAC 260:115-1-2, OAC 260:115-7-32.(g), OAC 260:115-9-1.(h)  

AGENCY INFORMATION 

Name:         Agency number:       

Address:         City/State/Zip:       

Contact Person:         Email Address:       
 

 

 

 

 

   
SUPPLIER INFORMATION 

Name:       PeopleSoft ID number:       

Address:         City/State/Zip:       

Contact Person:         Email Address:       
 

ORDER INFORMATION 
 

This evaluation covers the acquisition period from: Month / Day / Year to Month / Day / Year 
 
Acquisition process:    Fixed Rate  Sole Source  Agency Bid  OMES Bid  Interagency  

    GSA    Statewide     

Statewide Contract #::         Item number:       

Delivery Date of Last Shipment:          Purchase Order #       

Comments: 

      

Desired resolution and include any additional supporting data : 

      

Submission of this form and questions shall be sent to: CP.Feedback@omes.ok.gov 

Acquisition Type: Service(s)   Product(s)    

LEVEL OF SERVICE  (If “No” please explain in the comments section.) 

1.  Did the deliverable meet the specifications?  Yes  No 

2.  Was the deliverable on time?  Yes  No 

3.  Was the deliverable on budget?  Yes  No 

4.  Was the contractor responsive to your needs?  Yes  No 

5.  Were there any issues after the fact?  Yes  No 

6.   Would you use the contractor again?  Yes  No 

mailto:CP.Feedback@omes.ok.gov
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